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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO: Good

          3  afternoon. My name is Madeline Provenzano and I

          4  chair the Committee on Housing and Buildings. On

          5  behalf of the committee, I would like to thank all

          6  of you for attending this hearing on three bills

          7  that deal with the subject of demolition; Intro #72,

          8  #73 and #371.

          9                 The committee is concerned about the

         10  qualifications and performance of individuals and

         11  businesses directly engaged in demolition work

         12  throughout the city.

         13                 In recent years, there have been a

         14  number of incidents related to demolition work that

         15  was performed in a careless or haphazard manner.

         16  Such incidents resulted in injuries to persons,

         17  property damage or both.

         18                 Intro. #72 would provide for the

         19  establishment of new mandates for the licensing of

         20  demolition contractors and the registration of

         21  demolition contracting businesses.

         22                 Intro. #73 would mandate that a

         23  constructions site safety coordinator, commonly

         24  referred to as a site safety manager, be designated

         25  and present on the work site when any work that
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          2  requires a demolition permit is conducted at such

          3  site.

          4                 The committee is also concerned about

          5  the occurrence of demolition work and the occurrence

          6  of alteration work in general throughout the city.In

          7  recent years, there have been incidents in which

          8  work which should have been categorized as

          9  demolition work was performed under the pretext of

         10  an alteration. Intro. #371 was crafted to amend the

         11  definitions of the terms alteration and demolition

         12  contained in the building code.

         13                 The committee hopes that the bill

         14  will be used as a starting point from which to hear

         15  constructive testimony from representatives of the

         16  Department of Buildings, representatives of the

         17  housing and building industry and interested members

         18  of the public.

         19                 It is the committee's intention that

         20  this clarification in the definitions coupled with

         21  more intense scrutiny by the Department of Buildings

         22  will result in work that is done only with the

         23  issuance of the proper permits.

         24                 The committee expects to hear from

         25  knowledgeable professionals in the building industry
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          2  who are capable of providing meaningful perspectives

          3  on these three legislative items.

          4                 We will begin with testimony from the

          5  Department of Buildings. But I would also like to

          6  remind those that are here that if you wish to

          7  testify before the committee today you must sign-

          8  in.

          9                 Many of the members of this committee

         10  are running around... I think there are three or

         11  four committees meeting and folks are on different

         12  committees so it may be a coming and going session.

         13  But those that are with me now are Councilwoman

         14  Diana Reyna, Councilman Robert Jackson, Councilman

         15  Tony Avella.

         16                 Commissioner, we welcome you. Would

         17  you like to begin?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Good

         19  afternoon, Chairperson Provenzano and members of the

         20  Housing and Buildings Committee. My name is Patricia

         21  Lancaster and I am the Commissioner of the city's

         22  Department of Buildings. With me, on my right is Ron

         23  Livian, Deputy Commissioner for Technical Affairs

         24  for the Department. On my left, Phyllis Arnold, the

         25  Department's General Counsel. Thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to speak this afternoon regarding Intro.

          3  #72, #73 and #371.

          4                 Let me begin my remarks by stating

          5  that the Department wholeheartedly supports the

          6  primary purpose of these bills, which is to ensure

          7  public safety by requiring that individuals have the

          8  qualifications and expertise to safely perform

          9  demolition work. The Department's records indicate

         10  that in recent years the number of demolition

         11  permits has been increasing from 1,128 in 1998 to

         12  2,054 last year.

         13                 With the increase in such work the

         14  attendant safety concerns have only become

         15  amplified. For example, on August 22, 2001 at 4th

         16  Avenue and 2nd Street in Brooklyn, an out- of- state

         17  demolition contractor, FMC Inc., began mechanical

         18  demolition without permits, did not safeguard

         19  pedestrians and used a steel beam as a battering-

         20  ram to assist in the demolition of a wall causing

         21  walls to collapse and resulting in injuries to a

         22  woman and her child.

         23                 Therefore, calling for the

         24  qualification and licensing of demolition

         25  contractors is appropriate and necessary. However,
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          2  as the council begins its consideration of these

          3  three bills, having given careful study to the

          4  issue, we recommend that the final legislation

          5  include some modifications.

          6                 As written, the bills contain areas

          7  of concern for the department. However, minor

          8  modifications to the legislation could address each

          9  of the Department's reservations. I'll next discuss

         10  each of these reservations and The ways that they

         11  can be remedied.

         12                 As an initial matter, we suggest that

         13  Intro #72 and #73 be combined into a single

         14  demolition bill since that are interrelated, with

         15  respect to conducting demolition operations. We

         16  believe that Intro #371 however, should be treated

         17  separately, as it impacts job filing rather than

         18  demolition operations, and as it is not directly

         19  related to Intro #72 and #73.

         20                 Regarding the individual bills as

         21  currently drafted, let's look at Intro #72 first. In

         22  order to address the public safety issues posed by

         23  the qualifications of those doing demolition work,

         24  Intro #72 should be revised to require that a

         25  license is required for the performance of any
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          2   "demolition as defined by section 27- 232 of the

          3  building code, or for the removal of any exterior

          4  wall or portion thereof, or roof structure excluding

          5  minor alterations and ordinary repairs as defined in

          6  27- 124 and 27- 125 of the Building Code."

          7                 For consistency, we also suggest that

          8  the bill state that no individual or business entity

          9  shall engage in any "demolition as defined by 27-

         10  232 of the code or removal of any exterior wall or

         11  portion thereof, or roof structure excluding minor

         12  alterations and ordinary repairs as defined in

         13  sections 27- 124 and 27- 125 of the Building Code,

         14  unless licensed."

         15                 This language both captures other

         16  alteration work requiring technical skills similar

         17  to those necessary for demolition and ensures that

         18  such work will be performed by a licensee.

         19                 Intro #72 also requires that a

         20  license applicant have at least "seven years of

         21  practical experience in demolition work, at least

         22  two years of which must have been in a supervisory

         23  position." As written, this requirement is somewhat

         24  vague and could lead to unqualified individuals

         25  perhaps, obtaining licenses. Specifically; (1) the
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          2  bill does not identify during what time period the

          3  seven years of experience is to have been obtained.

          4  Thereby potentially allowing someone with no recent

          5  experience to qualify for a license; (2) "demolition

          6  work" is not defined anywhere in the bill and thus

          7  could include irrelevant work (such as the

          8  demolition of bridges, dams, etc.) As qualifying for

          9  experience; and (3) the requirement that demolition

         10  be performed under the supervision of a licensee

         11  appears to contradict the requirement that an

         12  applicant have at least two years of supervisory

         13  experience.

         14                 Intro #72 also does not require an

         15  examination of license applicants. The Department

         16  believes that an examination of applicants is

         17  necessary to provide objective evidence that an

         18  applicant is knowledgeable about New York City's

         19  safety standards.

         20                 To address these concerns, we suggest

         21  that Intro #72 be revised to require that (1) unless

         22  he or she is a licensed professional engineer or

         23  registered architect, a license applicant must take

         24  an examination concerning that minimum demolition

         25  safety standards for New York City; (2) that a
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          2  license applicant's practical experience have

          3  occurred within the past ten years; and (3) that

          4  this work involves "demolition as defined by section

          5  27 232 of the Building Code or the removal of any

          6  exterior wall or portion thereof, or roof structures

          7  on buildings."

          8                 The Department is further concerned

          9  over the apparent failure of Intro #72 to make

         10  applicable to the new class of licensees the

         11  Administrative Code's general provisions governing

         12  licensees. Title 26 of the Code contains an article

         13  exclusively devoted to general provisions applicable

         14  to Department- regulated licenses. These include

         15  provisions that, for instance, prohibit non-

         16  licensees from using licenses and authorize the

         17  Department to discipline errant licensees.

         18                 The Department believes that for any

         19  licensing scheme to genuinely protect the public

         20  from unscrupulous or dangerous practitioners these

         21  provisions must be included. Thus, the Department

         22  recommends that Intro #72 incorporate Section 27-

         23  128 of the Code which limits license usage to

         24  licensees and Section 27 140, which sets forth

         25  penalties for violating the licensing provision.
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          2                 We also recommend that the law

          3  include disciplinary provisions authorizing the

          4  Department to take actions against the licensee or

          5  the registered business including suspension,

          6  revocation or the refusal to renew, upon proof of

          7  malfeasance to be set forth in the rules of the

          8  Department.

          9                 Intro #72 also requires that

         10  penalties for adjudicated violations "relating to

         11  the licensee" be paid prior to renewal but does not

         12  define what violations are "related" to a licensee.

         13  A broad interpretation of this provision could lead

         14  to a licensee employed by a company with multiple

         15  licensees being unfairly penalized for work over

         16  which he or she has no control. For instance, a

         17  licensee employed by a registered company could

         18  potentially be held responsible for penalties

         19  arising due to illegal work performed by another

         20  licensee for the same company.

         21                 To remedy this, we suggest that the

         22  bill require that the licensed demolition contractor

         23  either be the registered demolition contracting

         24  business or a principal of or partner in such

         25  business- not a mere employee, as permitted in the
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          2  current version. Placing corporate responsibility

          3  squarely on the shoulders of the licensee would

          4  eliminate the risk that the licensee/employee would

          5  be unfairly penalized for work done by others

          6  working for his company. Additionally, in the

          7  interest of public safety we also recommend that

          8  violations be corrected prior to license renewal.

          9                 Finally, Intro #72's requirement that

         10  those who violate any of the bill's provisions

         11   "shall" be liable for a civil penalty imposed by

         12  the Commissioner after a hearing should be removed.

         13  This is redundant with the processes already in the

         14  Administrative Code, and would be expensive for the

         15  Department to set- up and administer. If the Council

         16  is unhappy with the current fines available at ECB,

         17  the ECB penalty schedule set forth in the Code can

         18  be amended to provide for higher fines after ECB

         19  adjudicates the violations. And we can talk about

         20  that if you want to.

         21                 Moving on to Intro #73, that bill's

         22  requirement that a "construction site safety

         23  coordinator" be on site during demolition operations

         24  is perhaps, impractical. As an initial matter, no

         25  definition is provided for the term "construction
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          2  site safety coordinator." If this individual is

          3  intended to be a site safety manager, as I believe

          4  you said in your introductory remarks, the

          5  imposition of such a requirement on all demolition

          6  jobs, irrespective of size, would be unreasonable

          7  expensive for both owners and demolition

          8  contractors. If it is intended to be another

          9  individual, the bill does not clarify the nature of

         10  his or her relationship with the licensee or state

         11  whether this individual can be one and the same as

         12  the demolition contractor.

         13                 Instead, we suggest that bill be

         14  changed to require that a "demolition supervisor"

         15  (who could be a licensee) be on- site when work

         16  requiring a demolition license is required (in

         17  addition to "work for which a demolition permit" is

         18  required). The Department should additionally be

         19  given the authority to promulgate rules establishing

         20  the qualifications and responsibilities of the

         21  demolition supervisor, in contrast to the current

         22  draft which authorizes the Department only to

         23  promulgate rules concerning enforcement.

         24                 Finally, I will comment briefly on

         25  Intro #371, which we do not believe, as I said, will
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          2  have an impact upon the quality of demolition work

          3  performed in New York City, because rather than

          4  insuring the skill of those performing the

          5  demolition work, it would modify the way

          6  professionals file jobs with the Department.

          7                 Nevertheless, I will address Intro

          8  #371's expansion of the Building Code's definition

          9  of demolition. The bill expands the definition to

         10  include "any change, addition or modification" of a

         11  building resulting in more than thirty percent of

         12  the building's "structural shell being

         13  rehabilitated, maintained or reused". This proposed

         14  definition is potentially confusing. For instance,

         15  it is unclear whether the "structural shell"

         16  includes roof space or what the impact of interior

         17  renovation is. It is also unclear whether

         18   "rehabilitation, maintenance or reuse" includes

         19  minor repairs or routine maintenance.

         20                 Finally, it perhaps, does not

         21  adequately capture other work that does not involve

         22  a full scale demolition but which requires the same

         23  skill and technical knowledge. Specifically, work

         24  involving the removal of an exterior wall or portion

         25  thereof, or the removal of any roof structure. This
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          2  work not only involves the same technical skills as

          3  does a full- scale demolition but because it can

          4  affect public areas, it raises the same safety

          5  concern. Accordingly, Intro #371's changes to the

          6  definition of demolition and the parallel changes to

          7  the definition of alteration should be removed,

          8  leaving the current definition of demolition in

          9  place.

         10                 In sum, the Department supports the

         11  goals that these goals aim to achieve. However, to

         12  maximize the bills' safety impact and to ensure that

         13  they are practical to implement, we ask that you

         14  fully consider the recommendations that we have just

         15  outlined and I thank you for the opportunity to

         16  speak to you today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Thank you,

         18  Commissioner. I think that some of the suggestions

         19  you've made are very relevant and as always we

         20  appreciate your expertise. I don't have to remind

         21  everyone that this is the beginnings (sic), first

         22  hearing. And as we usually like to do, we listen to

         23  everybody, listen to your recommendations, your

         24  complaints, throw everything in a great big bowl,

         25  shake it up, throw it and hopefully come out with a
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          2  perfect bill.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  And we'll

          4  participate with you in that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Or we wish

          6  that could happen. Does anybody... Let me just

          7  introduce Council Member Kendall Stewart, and

          8  Council Member Avella has a question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Good

         10  Afternoon, Commissioner. In reference to Intro #371,

         11  do I take it then your in general agreement with the

         12  principles of the bill in terms of requiring that

         13  thirty percent of the construction would not be an

         14  alteration but a demolition?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No, I think

         16  the issue is somewhat more complex than can be

         17  answered with a simple "yes" or "no" on that.

         18  Frankly, we'd like more time to study it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Because one

         20  of the things that we've discussed before and I may

         21  have mentioned it to you at previous hearings is we

         22  have situations out in the community where the

         23  developers, contractors and probably the less

         24  reputable ones are doing this, where they'll get an

         25  alteration permit but they knock down everything in
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          2  the house except one side of the house, and I've

          3  actually seen this, where they have plywood

          4  supporting that wall. So if you took those plywood

          5  planks away, that wall would fall down and they've

          6  gotten an alteration permit. I mean it's obvious

          7  that's a total demolition and they're just using

          8  this as an excuse. What can we do and how can we

          9  change this bill to make sure that this doesn't

         10  happen and I hope you take that into account because

         11  that clearly is a way of getting around the law.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, I

         13  think that it must be remembered that there are a

         14  couple of different legislative generations here.

         15  That the perception that you can demolish a building

         16  and call it an alteration is sometimes left over

         17  from "93" when the original enactment was put in.

         18  There's a recent PPN, there's one that goes back

         19  five years. I think it's a complex issue and an

         20  important one for both economic development and

         21  historic preservation as well as preservation of

         22  neighborhoods so, we would like to look at it a

         23  little more closely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

         25  Madam Chair, I just wanted to... Thinking back off
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          2  of what Council Member Avella has just begun,

          3  because I'm trying to understand what the difference

          4  would be. Is there a difference in price between

          5  applying for a permit when you're altering or

          6  demolishing an existing site?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: The fees are

          8  based on the percentage of construction. So the

          9  price is not necessarily the work type, it's the

         10  cost of the project.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So what would

         12  possess a contractor to, let's say, apply for an

         13  alteration permit rather than a demolition when you

         14  obviously are demolishing practically more than

         15  seventy five percent of the existing site and

         16  claiming that it was an alteration because you left

         17  one side of this particular property?

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Well, the

         19  issue has to do with zoning square feet. Under the

         20  existing laws and zoning code and zoning resolution,

         21  if your building is an alteration, therefore, of an

         22  existing building, you are allowed to grandfather

         23  the number of zoning square feet that you are using,

         24  which is sometimes higher than you'd be permitted to

         25  build under a new building application. It can be
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          2  worth quite a lot of money.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  So, zoning is

          4  an issue when you apply for a demolition permit or

          5  an alteration permit.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Say that

          7  again.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Zoning becomes

          9  part of the equation whether you apply for a

         10  demolition or an alteration permit.

         11                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: I guess what

         12  I'm saying is that the rules could potentially

         13  change on certain sites if you file for a new

         14  building permit.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Because

         16  demolishing means you're reducing...

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, because

         18  the code is different for a new building versus an

         19  existing building. Existing buildings are grand-

         20  fathered.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Commissioner,

         23  let me just follow up on that. So that would be the

         24  logic why someone would file for an alteration

         25  rather than a total demolition because then if they
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          2  do that the requirements for building on the

          3  footprint of that would be reduced, in essence.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That's

          5  correct. Could be... It depends on the site.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So for

          7  example, when we notice things like that... What

          8  should a layperson do, for example, when they see

          9  something like that? Should they call the Department

         10  of Buildings? Should they go and see, as a Council

         11  member, what type of permit do you have? Or does it

         12  actually say it somewhere posted?

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Yeah, the

         14  work type, which is alterations versus new building

         15  versus demolition is a part of the permit. It is one

         16  of the boxes...

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  It should be

         18  visible somewhere.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  And it

         20  should be visible somewhere however, if it's not

         21  dial 311 and put in a complaint. I think it's pretty

         22  simple and actually that's a good thing to do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We've been

         25  joined by Council Member Comrie and Council Member
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          2  Oddo. Do you have any questions for the

          3  Commissioner?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I want a

          5  little clarity on a sentence that you read a while

          6  ago.  You said "instead we suggest that the bill be

          7  changed to require that a demolition supervisor..."

          8  Can a demolition supervisor be one without a

          9  license? To demolish?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Now? Yes.

         11  And they could also have no training. They could not

         12  be qualified. They could have no experience, now.

         13  That's what we are trying to change.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you are

         15  saying that the supervisor must have or should have

         16  a license.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  A supervisor

         18  may have a license.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: May, but I'm

         20  saying do you require that the supervisor be

         21  required to have a license to be a supervisor for

         22  demolition? Is that you're recommendation?

         23                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  What we want

         24  is for someone on site to be licensed. I could be

         25  the supervisor, the supervisor's supervisor or the
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          2  person doing the actual demolition. Just that

          3  someone on site needs to know the rules.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Right, I

          5  understand that but I'm just trying to make sure

          6  that what your recommendation is, is that anyone who

          7  is a supervisor for demolition should have at least

          8  go (sic) through some process of knowing that risk

          9  and all the problems that might occur so that they

         10  can do all the necessary things that a licensed

         11  person will have.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  To ensure

         13  safety, yes. But part of that would be clarified by

         14  means of rules after the legislation would be

         15  passed. Which would tell how people could either be

         16  licensed or qualified.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, the

         18  recommendation should be that if someone is a

         19  supervisor they must go through certain rules to be

         20  able to conduct a demolition. And get that license.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  That's

         22  correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  So you might

         24  be just a licensed person but not necessarily be a

         25  supervisor. But if you are going to be a supervisor,
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          2  you must have the license?

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No, you must

          4  have a license or be otherwise qualified. Which

          5  would be clarified in the rules after the

          6  legislation is passed.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  Alright. How

          8  many licensed demolition experts do you think that

          9  city has right now?

         10                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: How many...

         11  Do you know? How many what?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Licensed

         13  demolition experts.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  None,

         15  because there is no license right now.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  There is no

         17  license right now.

         18                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Right. I'm

         19  sorry, I misunderstood your question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  There is no

         21  license right now. So, what we are saying is that we

         22  want every site that there is going to be a

         23  demolition, we want to have someone who is licensed

         24  to do that. And who, if you are going to be a

         25  supervisor on that job, you have to have that
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          2  license.

          3                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Somebody has

          4  to be licensed on the job.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART:  All right.

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  And we think

          7  that will make it safer.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  It's not

          9  really a question but it's something that I would

         10  like you to comment on. You spoke on the

         11  terminology. The bill says "construction site safety

         12  coordinator" and actually, it's always been referred

         13  to as sort of a "site safety manager" but it's never

         14  really been defined. Not even in the building code.

         15  So, we kind of feel that in helping us do this your

         16  agency is probably the ones to help us define that.

         17                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The

         18  requirements for being a site safety manager are

         19  defined in the rules.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  So that is

         22  defined. Now what we would like to see is that site

         23  safety managers, specifically geared toward high-

         24  rise buildings and buildings over 100,000 square

         25  feet, that the qualifications for a demolition
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          2  contractor, some doing demolition, might be slightly

          3  different. So that we're preferring to license

          4  demolition people, not have them be site safety

          5  people because site safety people require training

          6  in building high- rise building and keeping them

          7  safe as they are building them. There are overlaps,

          8  I'm not saying there aren't.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  But it

         10  should be clarified in the bill. That's your

         11  recommendation.

         12                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The bill or

         15  the rules. We can talk about that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay.

         17  Council Member Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I'm sorry,

         19  Commissioner as you know, I had the Land Use

         20  Committee and that just broke up to come over here.

         21  It's been a wonderful day in the neighborhood to say

         22  the least. I want to thank you for coming and I was

         23  trying to read through your testimony so that you

         24  wouldn't have to be redundant and repeat a lot of

         25  questions. And I appreciate you taking a look at the
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          2  bills and seeing that they are doable but just need

          3  to be amended somewhat. Clearly, when you were

          4  talking about Intro #72 and developing the licensing

          5  for a site supervisor or demolition supervisor or

          6  whatever you want to title it... as you know, there

          7  was another scaffolding incident over the weekend

          8  where because of the way that they either stacked it

          9  or maintained the building during the... I'm not

         10  sure if that was an alteration or a demolition, I

         11  didn't get that far in the article... But we need to

         12  come up with some requirements quickly and I was

         13  wondering what could be done to try to create a

         14  quick level of demolition or supervisor that would

         15  be able to look at the mid- size buildings where

         16  it(sic) seems to be all the problems are. As opposed

         17  to the larger structures or the smaller structure.

         18  It seems to be, most of the demolition problems or

         19  the alteration problems occur in building between

         20  five stories and ten to fifteen stories as opposed

         21  to the larger buildings or even the smaller

         22  buildings. Where there's not the level of expertise

         23  or the level of financial interest in say, doing a

         24  building such as the new Columbus Circle or that

         25  mid- level certification is what I'm concerned
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          2  about. That seems to be where most of the problems

          3  are right now.

          4                 COMMISSIONER LANDCASTER:  I think

          5  that you've played very nicely into something that I

          6  wanted to talk a little about, which is the lack of

          7  available data to enable us to quantify exactly what

          8  the issues are.

          9                 In other words, when we are looking

         10  for examples of collapse, we have to look back to

         11  the year 2000 and then we found one more but that

         12  was only two an we are talking about demolition here

         13  and what we are finding is that demolition is an

         14  issue and it's certainly a trade that has been

         15  troubled for many years but also adjacent

         16  construction is a huge issue. But we don't have

         17  adequate data, so what we've done is come up with a

         18  new accident tracking form which I wanted to bring

         19  today. We are in the process of implementing it,

         20  which I think will be able to give us data on

         21  exactly what you're talking about.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay. As

         23  usual, you're well prepared and well armed.

         24                 COMMISSIONER LANDCASTER:  We try our

         25  best. I think you'll see on the top of the second
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          2  page, for example, the thing that talks about

          3  demolition and asks for the notification if it's an

          4  adjacent property of the property itself. Because

          5  what we're finding a lot is that a contractor

          6  digging on an adjacent site has a wall shear off

          7  (you've seen the pictures in the paper) of a

          8  building that's not the site that got the permit.

          9  And so we need to understand that a little bit more.

         10  I think what you're saying about mid- rise buildings

         11  depends kind of on their age, too. The older ones

         12  are having a little bit more problems than the newer

         13  ones.

         14                 Now, what we want to do is over time,

         15  and this won't happen immediately, but we want to

         16  gather better data so that we can solve the problems

         17  that actually exist versus anecdotally what we are

         18  thinking exist.

         19                 That's one thing. The other thing is

         20  that I'm empowered or the Department is empowered to

         21  designate any site a "site safety" job. So that if

         22  we have particular concerns about a mid- rise

         23  building that maybe isn't being constructed

         24  properly, there's a lot of debris or an old building

         25  that there seems to have more cracks, if it's an
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          2  alteration, then we feel comfortable with then we

          3  have the power to designate that as a "site safety

          4  project" and make them have a site safety manager

          5  and file a site safety plan and all of the

          6  requirements of a "site safety project".

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.

          8  Alright.

          9                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  The other

         10  thing is you can help us by, if you notice that

         11  things where you think things are being done in an

         12  unsafe manner, dial 311 and tell us about it. We'll

         13  send someone out right away.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Well, I don't

         15  want to ask you how 311... That is a different

         16  question. Okay, so you are going to be looking into

         17  seeing what can be done. And so in the short term,

         18  the Intro #72, we're trying to develop the licensing

         19  of the applicants.

         20                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes, we

         21  suggested that Intro #72 and #73 be combined into

         22  one demo safety bill.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and

         24  you're looking to make sure that the contractors

         25  themselves are the primary persons that are held
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          2  liable for whatever is being done. As opposed to any

          3  individual that would be a site supervisor. Because

          4  you're talking about multiple buildings or

          5  multiple...

          6                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  No, actually

          7  we debated this quite thoroughly in house and

          8  similar to the solution on the scaffolding proposal,

          9  are proposing that both the firm and an individual

         10  be licensed. We think that covers the gamut of

         11  making sure the people actually on site know what

         12  they are doing. But also making sure that companies

         13  behave in a responsible fashion.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, so you

         15  want to make sure the companies themselves have an

         16  in house license or person that has the expertise to

         17  be in control of the site if need be. But you're

         18  still looking for a secondary person, not

         19  necessarily with the company, to have the license to

         20  be the site safety person?

         21                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER: Well, "site

         22  safety manager" is separate legislation from the

         23   "demolition safety" bill. So, "demolition safety"

         24  calls for contractor, the firm, and an individual

         25  who is on site to be licensed. If the Department so

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  desires, the Department could designate any

          3  particular demolition job to be a "site safety" job

          4  in addition to that. Which would require that they

          5  would need to have a site safety plan and a site

          6  safety manager on site all of the time. That wasn't

          7  necessarily our intention because I think if we get

          8  the contracting firm and the individual on site

          9  trained and qualified in passing the exam that, that

         10  will provide for ultimate safety.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And that

         12  would be done in conjunction with building trades to

         13  develop a set of parameters for the persons to

         14  become licensed?

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes, we've

         16  actually reached out to the Demolition Contractors

         17  Association and have not yet been in touch with the.

         18  But the Department's policy is to build consensus

         19  when coming up with these bills and we're certainly

         20  open to talking with anyone about their suggestions

         21  or requirements.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay. I

         23  didn't get a chance to read all of your suggestions

         24  on Intro #371 but there was a question earlier about

         25  the terms and conditions or the terms and
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          2  distinctions on what is an "alteration" and what is

          3  a "demolition" and whether thirty percent of a

          4  structural change was an alteration or not. Have you

          5  come to any decisions or possible levels of cut off

          6  on what is one vis-a-vis (sic) what is the other?

          7                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Oh, I've

          8  just been notified that we have a meeting with the

          9  demo contractors next week.  The issue of whether a

         10  building is filed as an alteration or is filed as a

         11  new building or demo in conjunction with a new

         12  building is one that is incredibly complex.

         13  Therefore, we move to separate Intro #371 from #72

         14  and #73 which address the people doing the

         15  demolition and what I've told Council Member Avella

         16  was that we wanted time to consider the issue

         17  further. We have issued in the recent past, say

         18  about a year ago, a further update to the PPN that

         19  talks about what determines an existing building

         20  versus a new building. But the issue is complex and

         21  we want to look at it some more.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I appreciate

         23  that and I'm sure that Councilman Avella and I know,

         24  myself were concerned about a lot of the... In our

         25  districts which are small home districts, the people
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          2  that are filing plans that are not accurate or doing

          3  either new home construction and/or alterations that

          4  are really structural demolitions or adding on a lot

          5  to actually change the nature of the neighborhood in

          6  the way they put up a new structure. So I don't know

          7  how we can fix that in the interim but I hope that

          8  we can do something or develop some kind of internal

          9  mechanism but then the Building Department may be

         10  some kind of expanded conditions team or best squad

         11  to come out and look at the construction while it's

         12  going on or to have more people out doing the

         13  monitoring of the actual work that's going on after

         14  the permits have been issued.

         15                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yeah, I

         16  think the enforcement issues, as separate from what

         17  the rules are, mean that there is illegal

         18  construction going on out there and we want, I mean

         19  we would like to request help if your constituents

         20  could help us by identifying those and calling them

         21  in and we'll put a stop work order on them.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay. Thank

         23  you. That's all of the questions. I want to thank

         24  you for everything that the Department is doing to

         25  look at the bills and we have more consensus than
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          2  opposition and I'm sure we can work out the

          3  technical details and if I can be helpful then

          4  please don't hesitate to reach out.

          5                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We have been

          8  joined by Council Member Lou Fidler. Do you have any

          9  questions, Lou?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: No.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Council

         12  Member Brewer is a member of the committee but I

         13  know she's somewhere. She's got three meetings. She

         14  has her own committee meeting and I know if she were

         15  here she would want to bring up the problem that she

         16  had in her district with the Presbyterian Church. So

         17  maybe if you'd want to just comment on that, so that

         18  she's aware that we're aware that you're aware?

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Yes,, the

         20  Sellwin (phonetic) Office Building?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  It was a

         22  church... 86th and Amsterdam. I think it was

         23  classified as an alteration, but it was actually a

         24  demolition. And she came riding in on her white

         25  horse and stopped it.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Counsel has

          3  just told me that we're in contention over that very

          4  issue that we've been talking about; alteration

          5  versus new building, demolition, etc. In such a way

          6  that it may become litigative and it's probably

          7  better for us not to address it at this time.

          8                 However, we have said that we would

          9  meet with Council Member Brewer to discuss the issue

         10  further.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Okay, so

         12  we'll delay that.

         13                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  We

         14  appreciate you bringing it up.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Does anyone

         16  else have questions for the Commissioner?

         17                 I guess not. We thank you for your

         18  input as always.

         19                 COMMISSIONER LANCASTER:  Thank you,

         20  Madeline.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  We'll

         22  continue to work together on it. Thank you, Ryan...

         23  Phyllis.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PROVENZANO:  Bernie Carr

         25  and Cindy Espinoza. Welcome, introduce yourself
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          2  please.

          3                 MS. CINDY ESPINOZA:  Thank you. Good

          4  afternoon and thank you for the opportunity to

          5  testify today. My mane is Cindy Espinoza and I

          6  represent the New York State Association for

          7  Affordable Housing. This is Bernie Carr, the

          8  Executive Director of NYSAFAH.

          9                 NYSAFAH is a trade association for

         10  the for- profit affordable housing development

         11  community. Our membership, which includes private

         12  and not- for- profit developers, lenders and others

         13  involved in the affordable housing industry is

         14  responsible for most of the affordable housing

         15  developed in New York City in recent years. While

         16  NYSAFAH supports Intro #72, #73 and #371 in increase

         17  safety and more clearly define demolition activity,

         18  we can not endorse Intro #72, #73 and #371 in their

         19  current form. We offer the following suggestions

         20  regarding these introductions.

         21                 Firstly, in regards to Intro #72, we

         22  support the policy of licensing demolition

         23  contractors and registering demolition contracting

         24  businesses. We believe, however, that the licensing

         25  eligibility requirements  should be more related to
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          2  a contractors demolition experience and less

          3  restrictive. As you all are aware,  overly

          4  restrictive licensing requirements can have adverse

          5  consequences. Open competition would be compromised

          6  if new contractors and businesses are barred from

          7  entering the marketplace. The loss of choice could

          8  in fact, promote more abuses rather than eliminate

          9  them. For example, the few licensed contractors and

         10  businesses may "lease out" their licenses to

         11  unqualified people, which would undermine the intent

         12  of the bills to increased safety. To provide a

         13  safeguard without creating an excessive barrier that

         14  might induce this type of market condition, we

         15  suggest that the required years of experience be

         16  decreased and possibly halved.

         17                 Secondly, in regards to Intro #73,

         18  our members support the requirement of site safety

         19  coordinators on demolition sites, and we offer our

         20  input into the process of establishing the rules

         21  relating to the enforcement of this proposed

         22  legislation.

         23                 Thirdly, in regards to the proposed

         24  definitions of "alteration" and "demolition", our

         25  membership fully supports Intro #371 to enhance the
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          2  security of demolition activities by more clearly

          3  delineating between alteration and demolition.

          4  However, we strongly feel that the definition of

          5  demolition, as proposed, is overly broad and

          6  onerous. The lack of specificity in the definition

          7  could mean that painting and building or replacing

          8  the windows of the building where to total window

          9  area is greater than thirty percent could be

         10  construed as demolition. We would be happy to

         11  provide input into establishing a more specific

         12  definition and thus, a more effective piece of

         13  legislation. We believe that the primary source of

         14  danger during demolition relates to the load bearing

         15  members of the structure and/or a change in the

         16  foundation, nature or original design of the

         17  building. Our members could support legislation

         18  containing the definition containing such factors or

         19  otherwise be designed to identify the key factors

         20  that truly distinguish between alteration and

         21  demolition activities.

         22                 We are especially concerned about the

         23  potential impact of Intro #371. Without

         24  modification, Intro #371 can increase project

         25  uncertainty and project cost. Affordable housing
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          2  projects are generally completed under a very narrow

          3  profit margin, and their eligibility for the state

          4  and federal economic assistance that makes them

          5  possible, requires them to remain affordable to

          6  their targeted population. Any additional cost may

          7  make affordable housing projects unaffordable and

          8  therefore nonexistent.  Not only could our city be

          9  deprived of our of valuable affordable housing, but

         10  also of the construction jobs that such housing

         11  creates. Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I want to

         13  thank you. I'm acting as temporary chair as my chair

         14  has to go to a meeting. Did you have some specifics

         15  on Intro #371 other than what you had in your

         16  testimony?

         17                 MS. CINDY ESPINOZA:  I think we would

         18  be interested in participating further to think

         19  about specific language. But we did offer the

         20  suggestion that we refer specifically to load

         21  bearing members, things which would be, if they were

         22  the aspect of activity, would result in some of the

         23  collapses or some of the specific sources of danger

         24  that this bill is intending to address.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Alright.
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          2  Well, Intro #371 is trying... And we came to that

          3  same conclusion about the windows and we're trying

          4  to come up with language that would be more

          5  specific. Whatever language that you think could

          6  come up, that you could generate that would be more

          7  specific, we would be happy to incorporate.

          8                 MR. BERNIE CARR:  We will talk to our

          9  members and try to draft something up. And get back

         10  to you as soon as we can.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Clearly, the

         12  problem is that once you start opening up one can of

         13  worms, or closing one can of worms, you open up

         14  another with all of the technicalities that are in

         15  construction and alteration. But we do have a real

         16  problem with trying to keep contractors from biting

         17  off more than they can chew or not having the

         18  expertise to take on a job that once they get into,

         19  they realize that they are in danger. But yet, they

         20  are not reaching out or doing things. Clearly, I

         21  understand what you're saying about the licensing

         22  and locking people out of opportunities for

         23  competitive bidding. We will look into that as well.

         24  I want to thank you for your testimony today.

         25                 MS. CINDY ESPINOZA:  Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Any of the

          3  Council Members have questions? Alright... Thank you

          4  for coming.

          5                 MS. CINDY ESPINOZA:  Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Next, we have

          7  the American Society of Safety Engineers,

          8  Metropolitan Chapter's Representative, Stanley

          9  Sluszka. You can start your testimony.

         10                 MR. STANLEY SLUSZKA:  Good afternoon,

         11  Council Members. My name is Stanley Sluszka, I'm

         12  here today representing the Metropolitan Chapter of

         13  the American Society of Safety Engineers or the

         14  ASSE.

         15                 Founded in 1911, the ASSE the world's

         16  largest and oldest professional safety organization.

         17  The ASSE is committed to protecting people, property

         18  and the environment. Its 30,000 members work to

         19  prevent accidents, injuries and occupational

         20  diseases.

         21                 The New York Metro Chapter, of which

         22  I am a member, has more than 500 members dedicated

         23  to providing safer work places to protect lives and

         24  property.

         25                 As an organization, The ASSE commends
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          2  the Council for amending the administrative code of

          3  the City of New York regarding demolitions. We are

          4  in agreement with the newer requirement for a "site

          5  safety coordinator" on demolition sites. Considering

          6  that a demolition site can often be more hazardous

          7  than new construction, we agree that a dedicated

          8  safety professional should be supervising the work,

          9  just as a site safety manager is required on the

         10  construction of a major building.

         11                 We are also in agreement with the

         12  requirement to license demolition contractors. The

         13  licensing requirement is a must to protect the

         14  public from contractors who will not follow

         15  reasonable requests to work safely. The possibility

         16  of the revocation of a demolition license will serve

         17  as a useful to in eliminating contractors who do not

         18  have the public's welfare in mind. The requirement

         19  that the applicant for a demo license must be a

         20  professional engineer or register architect is yet

         21  another safeguard to help insure that professionals,

         22  with some knowledge of the building codes, are

         23  planning this hazardous work.

         24                 Regarding compliance, the demolition

         25  contractor will now know that they will have two
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          2  licenses on the line if they allow unsafe work to be

          3  done in the City of New York.

          4                 The Metro Chapter of the American

          5  Society of Safety Engineers believes that by

          6  incorporating these changes into the Administrative

          7  Code of the City of New York, the Building

          8  Department will have the tools that they need to

          9  safeguard the public that is affected by these

         10  demolition operations. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIR MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you. Did

         12  you hear the testimony from the Buildings

         13  Commissioner?

         14                 MR. STANLEY SLUSZKA:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Did you have

         16  any reaction to what she thought the amendments

         17  would be?

         18                 MR. STANLEY SLUSZKA:  We're in

         19  agreement with the modifications she mentioned. One

         20  of the things I was going to talk about is the

         21  clarification of the term "site safety coordinator".

         22  Her remarks, when you talk about demolition, it's a

         23  wide variety of construction sites you're talking

         24  about, from a two story building in Brooklyn to a

         25  thirty story building in Manhattan. So, a license
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          2  might be required on some and in that case, the

          3  Commissioner has the right to designate it as a site

          4  safety job. But on other jobs a site safety

          5  coordinator or a qualified person might be adequate.

          6  Whatever they work out to fie- tune that would be an

          7  improvement to the current system.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Do you think

          9  there needs to be site safety people on buildings

         10  that are less than five stories tall?

         11                 MR. SLUSZKA:  I heard you're remarks

         12  about the gap between the buildings that are between

         13  five stories and fifteen stories. At fifteen

         14  stories, a site safety manager will be on the job

         15  and they'll have a responsible person. I think I

         16  have to be in agreement with you on that gap. There

         17  is a gap in that area. And you said it yourself,

         18  there's a middle ground that we're having the

         19  biggest problem with. Again, anecdotally, I have no

         20  numbers to give you, but anecdotally, when you read

         21  the papers, these are the jobs we're having problems

         22  with.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

         24  Any questions from the members? Okay. Is there

         25  anything else you wanted to add?
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          2                 MR. SLUSZKA:  No, thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Next up here

          4  is Michael McGuire from the Mason Tender's District

          5  Council. We're being joined by Council Member Gail

          6  Brewer, who had an exciting committee hearing today,

          7  herself, on technology. It looks like your student

          8  of the day is...

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Albert Kramer

         10  (phonetic) is here as an intern for the day.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Welcome

         12  Albert. I hope you're enjoying your day here. Sorry,

         13  but good afternoon Michael, you can start.

         14                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Good afternoon. I am

         15  Mike McGuire, Mason Tender's District Council. The

         16  pieces of legislation we are here to consider today

         17  have a history that stretches back almost a decade.

         18  I first testified on this issue before the previous

         19  chair of this committee, Archie Spigner, in 1999. At

         20  that time, I cited a front page article published on

         21  July 29th, 1999 in the New York Daily News that

         22  outlined the dangers of working in the demolition

         23  industry. Daily News Reporter, Tom Robins, noted

         24  that twelve workers were killed in accidents in New

         25  York City between 1994 and 1999 making demolition
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          2  the single most dangerous construction trade.

          3  Construction continues to be among the deadliest, if

          4  not the most deadly industry, in New York City.

          5  State and federal records show that in the three

          6  year period between October 1999 and September 2002,

          7  there were no less than forty four fatal accidents

          8  on New York City. This figure, of course, does not

          9  include the more than fifty members of the building

         10  trades who were killed in the attack on the World

         11  Trade Center.

         12                 Generally speaking, the Mason

         13  Tender's District Council supports these pieces of

         14  legislation but leans more towards Intro #73 than

         15  Intro #72. Licensing schemes are often proposed as a

         16  fix for contracting problems but can actually make

         17  things worse. When a licensing requirement is

         18  established, enforcement tends to concentrate on

         19  these licensed contractors. This encourages the

         20  establishment of a non- licensed contractor market

         21  in which contractors fly under the radar of city

         22  regulators, thus exacerbating the problem the law

         23  was meant to solve.

         24                 Furthermore, licensing programs are

         25  susceptible to favoritism, which shrinks the pool of
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          2  contractors. Enlarging the pool of contractors is

          3  widely recognized as a way to get better quality

          4  work done at a better price. If Intro #72 focused

          5  more on the idea of having an engineer, architect or

          6  someone with a long history of practical experience

          7  on staff before the demolition permit is issued, we

          8  would look more favorable upon the legislation.

          9  However, as we saw recently in the case of rapid

         10  demolition at the West 57th Street Sanitation Garage

         11  Project, a history of practical experience does not

         12  for a safe job site make. Rapid demolition would

         13  have had no problem getting licensed under Intro

         14  #72.

         15                 Intro #73 will go farther to ensure

         16  the safety of both workers and the general public

         17  than any plan to license general contractors ever

         18  will. It is our belief, unequivocally, that

         19  requiring a licensed construction site safety

         20  coordinator on all total demolition sites will save

         21  lives. The only suggestion that we would make

         22  regarding Intro #73 is that the construction site

         23  safety coordinator be held to a very strict standard

         24  in the performance of his or her duty.

         25                 The total demolition business is the
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          2   "Wild, wild West" of the demolition industry. The

          3  flaunting of safety regulations, abuse of workers,

          4  ties to organized crime and general unsound business

          5  practices are par for the course in the total

          6  demolition industry. We have no reason to believe

          7  that a construction site safety coordinator in the

          8  employ of these companies would actually do the job

          9  he or she is charged to do. The leverage exists in

         10  the fact that becoming a licensed construction site

         11  safety coordinator is not easy task. Classes are

         12  extensive and the test administered by the City is

         13  not easy to pass for persons not properly trained or

         14  qualified. Suspension or termination of a

         15  construction site safety coordinator's license for

         16  failure to complete his or her duties should be a

         17  component of this law. Stiff monetary fines, high

         18  enough to be a real deterrent, should be levied

         19  against both the contractor and the individual

         20  licensed construction site safety coordinator in

         21  cases of willful or repeat violations.

         22                 In summation, the Mason Tender's

         23  District Council of Greater New York and Long

         24  Island, it's six constituent locals and its 15,000

         25  members, believes that Intro #73, the requirement
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          2  for a construction site safety coordinator on all

          3  construction projects will solve many of the

          4  problems in the total demolition industry, with the

          5  proviso that the construction site safety

          6  coordinator be held truly accountable. We urge the

          7  passage of Intro #73 with these changes as soon as

          8  possible. Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.

         10  You j=heard the testimony of Commissioner

         11  Landcaster. Did you have any amendments to what she

         12  came to present?

         13                 MR. MCGUIRE: I thought the

         14  Commissioner made some very good points. As far as

         15  my concerns with Intro #72, the fact that she came

         16  up with the idea that, not just a person on staff

         17  with he demolition contractor, be somebody who is

         18  competent but somebody who is one each job site. At

         19  least I believe that was the concept behind her

         20  ideas. That makes perfect sense to me because if you

         21  have one person sitting in the office who is a

         22  licensed architect it really doesn't do much good if

         23  you've got six demolition sites going across the

         24  city. The only thing that I would say in response to

         25  that though, is they were taking about creating a
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          2  demolition supervisor's position, we already have

          3  rules and licensing of site safety coordinators so

          4  instead of creating a whole new system of demolition

          5  supervisors I would say implementing Intro #73 would

          6  do virtually the same thing. My take on it is the

          7  Commissioner's biggest problem with Intro #73 is

          8  that she thought it would be cost prohibitive to the

          9  companies. I don't think it's unreasonable to say

         10  the companies shouldn't have to hire a whole

         11  separate construction site safety supervisor. If

         12  they want to make their on site safety supervisor go

         13  through the program, go through the training and get

         14  licensed as a site safety supervisor and then they'd

         15  be on site all of the time when demolition

         16  operations are going on, that would solve the

         17  problem right there and the person would be on staff

         18  anyway with the company and it would be no extra

         19  cost except for the cost of the training. So, that

         20  probably the simplest solution to the Commissioner's

         21  concerns.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, but

         23  don't you think that person would tend to not stay

         24  on site if they were from the contractor?

         25                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Well, if it's the on
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          2  site supervisor, they are usually there all during

          3  the day anyway. And they're supervising the workers.

          4  The problem is, for instance, a rapid demolition on

          5  West 57th Street after the scaffolding collapsed and

          6  pressure was starting to go up. The Department of

          7  Buildings did designate it as a "site safety site"

          8  and required a site safety coordinator to be there.

          9  Even after the site safety coordinator was required

         10  to be there, we saw some unsafe demolition practices

         11  going on that were witnessed by our organizers. The

         12  problem is that is was such a big site. If the

         13  person who's actually supervising the workers is

         14  also the site safety manager, along with teeth that

         15  would really hurt them if they don't do their job, I

         16  think that component... You've got the person who is

         17  supervising the workers but who has a real incentive

         18  to do his job as a site safety manager. You put

         19  those two things together and it pretty much solves

         20  the problem.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Alright.

         22                 Councilman Jackson.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Good

         24  afternoon, Mr. McGuire. What I wanted to say is that

         25  when you and members of your union were testifying
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          2  and showing a video of the rapid demolition in

          3  which, I can still see in my mind, where they were

          4  demolishing a wall and they had two construction

          5  workers on the other side of the wall, holding onto

          6  the wall while the crane was banging a part of it.

          7  And there was no safety scaffolding or anything, it

          8  was absolutely insane. Those guys could have been

          9  killed, literally. SO, I appreciate your union's

         10  perspective on this particular matter and especially

         11  to show us... Most of the time you don't believe

         12  that some of the work that's being performed and

         13  done improperly or illegally, until you see it with

         14  your own eyes. That video basically showed it all.

         15  So,I appreciate that and I look forward to your

         16  union's input into making Intro #72 and #73 and #371

         17  into comprehensive bills that will hopefully reach

         18  consensus by all those concerned.

         19                 MR. MCGUIRE:  Thank you.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Any other

         21  question? Okay, thanks for coming and thanks for

         22  giving us your testimony and insight as usual.

         23                 MR. MCGUIRE:  No problem and if you

         24  have any further questions, you know where to reach

         25  me. Thank you.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Is there

          3  anyone else who wanted to testify today? Council

          4  Member Brewer.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I just want

          6  to add my name to Intro #73, I think it's on Intro

          7  #72. I'm sorry I wasn't here earlier. I had two

          8  committee hearings across the street. Nut just to

          9  give you an example of... I know the Commissioner

         10  talked about #371 but here's all of the material

         11  from the church that if we hadn't stopped the

         12  demolition permit, which actually said "alteration"

         13  we wouldn't have a church. It was to be demolished

         14  to the first floor. And that was to be an

         15  alteration. So that's why this particular piece of

         16  legislation with amendments, that I know we will

         17  work out with the Commissioner and groups. But it's

         18  a good example of why I think we need some changes.

         19  Thank you very much.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Gail, the

         21  Commissioner did come up with, thanks to the bill

         22  she has created, an emergency report form that they

         23  never had before and I've asked that it increase to

         24  conditions team to go out and look at it. She's

         25  actually doing that, so you can take credit for this
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          2  and I might take a little credit too for getting the

          3  Commissioner to do the accident report form because

          4  they were saying they do not have the data on why

          5  some of these accidents occur so they put together

          6  this form and to get more inspections out on sites

          7  once they do submit or approve alterations or

          8  demolitions is critical to the safety and security

          9  of our residents.

         10                 With that being said, we'll go around

         11  the room once, twice, three times?  Meeting

         12  adjourned. Thank you very much.

         13                 All bills are coupled and laid over.

         14  Thank you very much for coming this afternoon.

         15  Hearing adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:30 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, DENISE MACALUSO, a Notary Public

         10  in and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 29th day of April 2002.
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         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              DENISE MACALUSO

         23

         24

         25

